
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 
 

 

1 

 
 

 
Housing Scrutiny Standing Panel 
Monday, 28th November, 2011 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Mark Jenkins   (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564607   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members of the Housing Scrutiny Panel: 
 
Councillors S Murray (Chairman), A Mitchell MBE (Vice-Chairman), Ms R Brookes, K Chana, 
Mrs A Grigg, Ms J Hart, Mrs S Jones, W Pryor, D Stallan, H Ulkun and Mrs J H Whitehouse 
 
 
Members of the Finance Scrutiny Panel: 
 
Councillors D Jacobs (Chairman), G Waller (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, R Bassett, 
K Chana, R Cohen, J Hart, P Keska, S Murray, S Packford and W Pryor 
 
Epping Forest Tenants & Leaseholders Federation: Mr S Hyde 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS IS A MEETING OF THE HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL TO 
WHICH MEMBERS OF THE FINANCE AND PERFORMANACE MANAGEMENT PANEL 

ARE INVITED AND IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 
 

 
 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   

 
  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 

their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chief Executive will read the following announcement: 
 
“This meeting will be webcast live to the Internet and will be archived for later viewing. 
Copies of recordings may be made available on request. 



Housing Scrutiny Standing Panel Monday, 28 November 2011 
 

2 

 
By entering the chamber’s lower seating area you consenting to becoming part of the 
webcast. 
 
If you wish to avoid being filmed you should move to the public gallery or speak to the 
webcasting officer” 
 

 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 3. SUBSITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive)  To report the appointment of any substitute 
members for the meeting. 
 

 4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive). To declare interests in any items on the agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel. This is attached. The Panel are asked at each meeting to 
review the document. The Panel’s Work Programme will be reviewed at its meeting in 
January 2012. 
 

 6. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) FINANCIAL PLAN - CONSULTATION ON 
THE REPORT OF THE HOUSING PORTFOLIO HOLDER TO THE CABINET ON 5 
DECEMBER 2011  (Pages 5 - 34) 

 
  (Director of Housing) To consider the attached report. 

 
 7. FUTURE MEETINGS   

 
  The next programmed meeting of the Panel is scheduled for Tuesday 31 January 

2012 at 5.30p.m. in Committee Room 1. 
 

 
 
 
 



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL 
 
 
 
Title:  Housing 
 
 
Status:  Standing Panel 
 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
(1)  To undertake reviews of public and private sector housing policies on behalf of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Housing Portfolio Holder or Head of Housing Services and to make any 
recommendations arising from such reviews to the Housing Portfolio Holder or Cabinet as 
appropriate. 
 
(2)  To undertake specific projects related to public and private sector housing issues, as directed by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and to make any recommendations arising from such reviews 
to the Housing Portfolio Holder or Cabinet as appropriate. 
 
(3)  To consider and provide comments to the Housing Portfolio Holder on the following matters, 
prior to consideration by the Cabinet: 
 
           (i)   Draft Housing Strategy (to be adopted by full Council in accordance with the 
                 Council’s Constitution) 
           (ii)  Draft Private Sector Housing Strategy 
           (iii) Draft Private Sector Housing Grants Policy 
           (iv) Annual Review of the Housing Allocations Scheme 
            
(4)  To consider and provide comments to the Housing Portfolio Holder on draft versions of the 
following documents: 
 
           (i)  Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan  
           (ii)  Local Supporting People Strategy 
           (iii) Housing Service Strategies 
 
(5)  To undertake the Annual Ethnic Monitoring Review of Housing Applicants and Housing 
Allocations, in accordance with the Code of Practice in Rented Housing. 
 
(6)  To monitor progress with the actions plans contained in the following documents, on a six-
monthly basis: 
 
           (i)   Housing Strategy 
           (ii)   Local Supporting People Strategy 
           (iii)  Private Sector Housing Strategy 
           (iv)  Housing Services Development Plan 
 
(7)  To consider the Housing Portfolio Holder’s draft response to any consultation papers relating to 
public or private sector housing that the Housing Portfolio Holder considers warrants a response 
from the Council.  
 
(8)  In relation to Traveller issues to consider and monitor: 
 

(a) the position regarding tolerated sites and;  
 
(b) the management of travellers who enter onto land within the district with a 
view to unauthorised encampments, with particular reference to the legal remedies 
available, interactions with other agencies such as Essex Police and Essex County 

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



G:\C\WILLETT\G 2005\TERMS OF REFERENCE - STANDING PANEL.doc 

Council and the provision of emergency and/or transit sites within the district; 
 
(c) Government’s guidance on the needs of travellers in the context of the 
Council’s review of its District Local Plan and the Essex Housing Needs 
Assessment; 
 
(d) the results of the Commission for Racial Equality’s study on traveller issues 
in which this Council participated, once published; 
 

(9)  To report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Council and the Cabinet with 
recommendations on matters allocated to the Panel as appropriate. 
 
 
Chairman:     Cllr Stephen Murray 
 
 

Page 4



 

 
Report to Housing and Finance & 
Performance Management Scrutiny 
Panels 
 
Date of meeting: 28th November 
2011 
 
Portfolio:  Housing – Cllr M. McEwen 
 
Subject:   HRA Financial Plan – Consultation on Strategic Approach 
 
Officer contact for further information:   
 
Alan Hall – Director of Housing (01992 564004) 
 
Committee Secretary:   Mark Jenkins 
 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
That the two Scrutiny Panels consider the attached draft report and recommendations 
of the Housing Portfolio Holder to the Cabinet on a proposed strategic approach to the 
HRA Financial Plan following the introduction of self financing, together with the 
accompanying report from CIHConsult (the Council’s HRA business planning 
consultants), and provide their comments to the Cabinet on the 5th December 2011 
before the Cabinet it makes its decision. 
 
Report: 
 
1. At its meeting on the 5th December 2011, the Cabinet will be considering the attached 
draft report and recommendations of the Housing Portfolio Holder, together with the 
accompanying report from CIHConsult (the Council’s HRA Business Planning Consultants), 
on the proposed strategic approach to be taken to the Council’s HRA Financial Plan in 
readiness for the Government’s introduction of self-financing for the HRA from April 2012. 
 
2. In view of the importance of this issue, the Cabinet has previously suggested that 
both the Housing and the Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panels should 
consider the issues and options and has invited them to provide the Cabinet with their views 
before it makes a decision. It was subsequently agreed that a Joint Meeting of the two 
Scrutiny Panels should be held.  The Tenants and Leaseholders Federation will also be 
meeting separately to consider the issues. 
 
3. The Cabinet has held an informal meeting with the Council’s HRA business planning 
consultants, CIHConsult, which has led to the attached draft report and recommendations of 
the Housing Portfolio Holder to the forthcoming Cabinet meeting on the 5th December 2011.  
The Scrutiny Panels are asked to note that the final version of the report to the Cabinet may 
differ from the attached draft.  If this is the case, any changes will be reported orally at the 
Joint Meeting. 
 
4. Attached as an Appendix to the draft report to the Cabinet is a detailed report on the 
issues and options relating to the formulation of a new HRA Financial Plan by CIHConsult.  
Simon Smith from CIHConsult will attend the Joint Scrutiny Panel meeting to present his 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 

report and answer members’ questions.  There will also be the ability at the meeting to 
consider, discuss and profile a range of "what if" scenarios, using CIHConsult’s modelling tool 
live.  
 
5. The Scrutiny Panels are invited to consider the Housing Portfolio Holder’s draft report 
and recommendations and, after receiving the presentation from CIHConsult, to consider and 
formulate its comments to the Cabinet on the draft report – which will be reported orally to the 
Cabinet by a representative from the Joint Meeting of the Scrutiny Panel, at the same time as 
the views of the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation are reported.  
 

Page 6



 

 

Report to the Cabinet 
 
Report reference:   C-nnn-2009/10 
Date of meeting: 5 December 2011 

 
Portfolio: 
 

Housing – Cllr Maggie McEwen 
Subject: 
 

HRA Financial Plan – Strategic Approach 
Responsible Officer: 
 

Alan Hall, Director of Housing  (01992 564004) 
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992 564470). 

 
   
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 
(1) That the report of CIHConsult, the Council’s HRA Business Planning 

Consultants, attached as Appendix 1, be noted;  
 
(2)   That, subject to the views of the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation and the 

Joint Meeting of the Housing and Finance & Performance Management 
Scrutiny Panels (to be reported orally), the general strategic approach for the 
HRA Financial Plan be as follows: 

 
 a)  That provision be made within the Financial Plan to fully maintain the 

Council’s housing stock to a modern standard, based on current stock 
condition and standard industry life cycles, as opposed to maintaining the 
stock at the current minimum Decent Homes Standard; 

 
 b)  That, in order to achieve the Council’s aspirations to commence a new 

Council Housing Building Programme (reported elsewhere on the Agenda), 
provision be made within the Financial Plan to fund such a Programme on the 
basis that individual development packages are self-funding, without any 
support or funding from the General Fund, subsidised if necessary from: 

 
(i) Grant from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA); 
(ii) Section 106 Agreement contributions from developers, in lieu of on-

site affordable housing provision; 
(iii) If allowed by the Government, the proceeds of Right to Buy (RTB) 

sales as a result of the Government’s proposal to increase RTB 
discounts whilst ensuring that a new affordable home is provided to 
replace the affordable home lost; 

(v) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) surpluses; and/or 
(vi) Cross-subsidy from the sale of other development sites within the 

Housebuilding Programme on the open market; 
 
 c)  That average rent increases included within the Financial Plan be based on 

the following rent increases, which the Government is expected to use to 
calculate the Council’s final HRA debt settlement, in order to achieve rent 
convergence by April 2015: 

 
 

Page 7



 

 

(i) Average rent increases of RPI + 2.3% for three years between April 
2012 and April 2014 inclusive (representing a 7.9% average rent 
increase in April 2012); and 

 
(ii) Average rent increase of RPI + 0.5% from Year 7, as assumed by the 

Government within the HRA debt settlement; 
 
 d)  Notwithstanding the provision for rent increases included within the 

Financial Plan, consideration be given each year during the HRA budget 
process, to the possibility and appropriateness of making a lower rent increase 
for the following year, having regard to the short and long term effects on the 
Financial Plan, the need to meet the Council’s housing and financial objectives, 
Government guidance and the effects on tenants; and   

 
 e)  Provision be made within the Financial Plan to fund £1.4m per annum for 

housing improvements and service enhancements, increased to £5.3m per 
annum from Year 10;  

 
(3) That the Indicative HRA Financial Plan attached as Appendix 2, based on the 

above assumptions, be adopted, and that the final version of the Financial Plan 
be adopted by the Cabinet on the 30th January 2012 or 12th March 2012, 
dependent on the date the final HRA debt settlement for the Council is 
confirmed by the Government; 

 
(4) That, following consultation with the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation, the 

Housing Scrutiny Panel be asked to consider and recommend to the Cabinet a 
range of potential housing improvements and service enhancements that could 
be undertaken, funded from the additional £1.4m per annum provision made 
within the Financial Plan; 

 
(5) That a further report be submitted to the Cabinet by the Housing Portfolio 

Holder on the additional staffing requirements for delivering a full maintenance 
programme to a modern standard; and  

 
(6) That the Council’s Treasury Management advisers, Arlingclose, be asked to 

provide advice to the Council on the effects of the HRA debt settlement (if any) 
on the Council’s General Fund. 

 
Executive Summary: 
 
In March 2012, the Government will be introducing a major change in the way that local 
authority Housing Revenue Accounts (HRAs) are funded, called Self Financing. It is therefore 
necessary to agree the approach to be adopted to the Council’s 30-Year HRA Financial Plan, 
which will be used to inform the treasury management options for borrowing the required 
finance. 
 
CIHConsult, the Council’s HRA Business Planning Consultants, have produced their report 
on the issue and the available options. The preferred option, set out in the recommendations 
above emerged from an informal meeting with Cabinet members.  There are still some 
uncertainties, the outcome of which will be reported orally at the meeting. 
   
A Joint Meeting of the Housing and Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panels 
and a meeting of the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation are due to be held in advance of 
this meeting to discuss and consider the issues.  Their views will be reported orally at the 
meeting. 

Page 8



 

 

 
Reasons for Proposed Decision: 
 
The Council needs to agree a strategic approach to its HRA Financial Plan, in advance of 
agreeing the HRA Budget, setting the rent increase for 2012/13 and borrowing the required 
finance to make the required debt settlement payment to the CLG. 
 
Other Options for Action: 
 
a)  Not to maintain the Council’s housing stock to a full maintenance (modern) standard, but 
to the lower (minimum) Decent Homes Standard. 
 
b)  Not to make financial provision for a new Council Housebuilding Programme, or a different 
level of provision. 
 
c)  To plan for different levels of increase than proposed. 
 
d)  Not to make provision for housing service enhancements and improvements, or at a 
different level. 
 
e)  Not to ask the Housing Scrutiny Panel to consider and recommend a range of service 
enhancements and that the Cabinet considers this issue itself 
 
f)    Not to consult the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation for their views on the service 
enhancements to be provided. 
 
Report: 
 
1. In March 2012, the Government will be introducing a major, long-term change in the 
way that local authority Housing Revenue Accounts (HRAs) are funded.  This will involve a 
change away from the current "HRA Subsidy System" to a new "HRA Self Financing 
System", under which this Council will need to make a one-off payment to the Government 
probably around £190m (instead of making annual payments to the Government - currently in 
excess of £11m per annum), for which a substantial proportion will need to be borrowed. 
 
2. There are two key aspects to this process from the Council's point of view.  Firstly, it 
needs to have a well-thought-through, robust 30-Year Financial Plan for the HRA, setting out 
all expected housing income and expenditure to meet the Council's housing objectives.  
Secondly, it needs to consider the treasury management options for borrowing the finance, in 
order to meet the cost of the payment to the CLG, and to ensure that the Council receives the 
best terms.  This latter process is being led by the Finance and Economic Development 
Portfolio Holder and the Director of Finance and ICT, on which further information will be 
provided in due course. 
 
3. CIHConsult are the Council’s HRA Business Planning Consultants, and have had a 
number of meetings with Housing and Finance officers on the options for the HRA Financial 
Plan, as well as a meeting with Cabinet members to discuss their informal views.  CIHConsult 
have now produced their report on the issue and the available options.  The Housing Portfolio 
Holder has met informally with CIHConsult and her Cabinet colleagues to discuss 
CIHConsult’s report, which has resulted in the above recommendations (including the 
Indicative HRA Financial Plan attached as Appendix 2) being made to the Cabinet.  
 
4. It should be noted that, at the time of writing, the Government’s final draft HRA debt 
settlements for councils have not been announced, and are now expected to be published 
W/C 21st November 2011.  Although CIHConsult have made assumptions in their report on 

Page 9



 

 

what they expect the Council’s final draft settlement will be, if they are different, some 
changes may be required to the above recommendations, which will be reported orally.   
 
5. It should also be noted that, although the Government has always stated that the 
introduction of HRA self financing should not have any detrimental effect on local authorities’ 
General Funds, CIHConsult has identified that there could possibly be a detrimental impact 
on this Council’s General Fund  However, if this is the case, they feel it could possibly be 
mitigated with assistance from the HRA (but which would then have a detrimental effect on 
the HRA).  CIHConsult has therefore advised that specialist advice on this issue should be 
sought from the Council’s treasury management advisers, Arlingclose.  If Arlingclose’s advice 
on this issue is received in time for the meeting, it will be reported orally.  If there is any effect 
on the HRA as a result, it may be necessary to amend some of the above recommendations, 
which will be reported orally. 
 
6. A Joint Meeting of the Housing and Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny 
Panels is due to be held on the 28th November 2011 to enable the two Scrutiny Panels to 
also consider the issues and options, and a draft version of this report and recommendations, 
in advance of this Cabinet meeting. 
 
7. In addition, the Tenants and Leaseholders Federation is also being consulted prior to 
this Cabinet meeting. 
 
8. The views of both the Joint Scrutiny Panel and the Tenants and Leaseholders 
Federation will be reported orally at the meeting, so that they can be taken into account 
before the Cabinet makes its decisions. 
 
Resource Implications: 
 
The effects of borrowing around £190million and repaying the debt over different periods of 
time 
 
Legal and Governance Implications: 
 
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and Housing Act 1985 
 
Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications: 
 
The proposed provision for housing service enhancements could fund additional security, 
safety and environmental improvements. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
The views of the Housing and Finance & Performance Management Scrutiny Panels and the 
Tenants and Leaseholders Federation will be reported orally. 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Stock condition data 
 
Impact Assessments: 
 
Risk Management 
 
HRA self financing brings a number of financial risks, in terms of treasury management.  
These will be set out and assessed in the Housing and Finance & ICT Risk Registers, as well 

Page 10



 

 

as the Council’s Corporate Risk Register. 
Equality and Diversity: 
 
Did the initial assessment of the proposals contained in this report for 
relevance to the Council’s general equality duties, reveal any potentially 
adverse equality implications? 
 

 No 

Where equality implications were identified through the initial assessment 
process, has a formal Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken? 
 

 N/A 

 
What equality implications were identified through the Equality Impact Assessment process? 
 
 
How have the equality implications identified through the Equality Impact Assessment been 
addressed in this report in order to avoid discrimination against any particular group? 
 
 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

 
 
Epping Forest District Council 
HRA Business Plan Report 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This report sets out the current position of the Housing Revenue Account, 

with forecasts over the next 30 years demonstrating its ability to meet the 
required investment standard to the existing stock and sustain balances 
without falling into deficit. 

 
1.2 In addition to these forecasts we have been asked to identify additional 

capacity within the business plan to finance the following, whilst enabling 
the repayment of the debt taken on as a result of self-financing within a 30 
year period: 
• Housing Revenue Account new build 
• Additional stock and environmental improvement and/or service 

improvements 
• Reduced rent increases. 

 
1.3 The coalition government has issued proposals to reform the Housing 

Revenue Account, namely the abolition of the HRA subsidy system and 
implementation of self financing following a one-of settlement at the end of 
2011/12, which will happen through primary legislation via the forthcoming 
passage of the Localism Bill (expected in late November). This has been 
reinforced with a policy document, published on 28th July, which sets out the 
proposed arrangements around the transaction in detail. 

 
1.4  The indicative settlement figure provided by CLG in February 2011 is 

subject to change in respect of a number of key areas: 
• Update of inflation assumptions 
• Update of stock numbers 
• Rebasing of the allowances calculation  
• Projected right to buy sales 

 
It is difficult to accurately estimate at this stage how this position may 
change. We understand that the final draft settlement will be released in 
week commencing 21st November for consultation with finalisation on the 
27th January 2012. The transaction will take place at the end of this financial 
year on the 28th March 2012. 

 
1.5 This report is therefore very much an initial position statement and will 

require updating once the final draft and final settlement values are known, 
HRA budgets for next financial year are approved, decisions have been 
taken as to how the settlement will be funded and further details on 
proposed changes to the Right to Buy policy. 

 

 

Appendix 1 

Page 13



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

2. Stock Summary 
 
2.1 Epping Forest District Council currently has 6,567 tenanted properties. No 

estate remodelling, demolitions have been included within these 
projections. We have made the provision for the transfer of 20 vacant bedits 
at Marden Close, Chigwell in year 3, with the associated adjustments to lost 
rental income and savings on maintenance within the plan. 

 
2.2 The average actual 2011.12 weekly rent of the stock is £82.19 against 

formula rent of £88.09 per week. The formula or target rent is a government 
based formula to calculate a social rent for each individual property. It is 
calculated using a weighting factor for the number of bedrooms, the 
property value as at January 1999 and the county average earnings index. 
This formula rent is then increased by inflation (September RPI) plus 0.5% 
each year. The expectation of the government is that your actual rents will 
increase to meet or converge with the formula rent for each property by 
April 2015. This means that Epping Forest can expect higher than inflation 
increases over the next 4 years to achieve convergence, though much of 
this rent increase will be taken into account in the self-financing debt 
settlement. This is shown in a graphical context in Chart 7.1 in paragraph 
7.13 further in this report. 

 
3. Housing Revenue Account Budget and balances 
 
3.1 As a basis for the financial modelling projections detailed later in this report, 

the core sources of data will be the Housing Revenue Account budget for 
2011.12 and future assumptions for movements in expenditure and income 
both national and local. 

 
3.2 HRA reserve balances are forecast to be £5.4million at the end of 2011.12. 

In addition there is a projected closing balance within the revenue repairs 
reserve of £3.6million which we have modelled to be fully utilised in year 2 
of the plan for meeting repairs expenditure. The Council also holds a Major 
Repairs Reserve which fund capital works, where it is estimated the year 
end balance will be £5.9million. Again this balance will be used to fund 
future capital works within the plan. 

 
4. Stock investment requirements 
 
4.1 The Council holds a database of future stock investment requirements 

based on a series of components, replacement costs values and life-cycles 
for each individual property.  

 
4.2 The chart below shows the total level of expenditure required for each year 

for the current number of properties and at today’s prices. 
 
  

Page 14



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 4.1 Stock Investment Requirements 
 

  
 
4.3 The required expenditure over 30 years on a per unit basis is £45,760. 

Whilst this level of expenditure is above benchmarks, it does allow for 
component replacement on realistic basis and to a modern standard, above 
the minimum Decent Homes Standard. In addition, this figure provides for a 
provision for disabled adaptations. The current HRA capital programme, if 
rolled forward at the same level each year, is equivalent to £31,600 per unit, 
based on the Decent Homes Standard, over a 30 year period. 

 
4.4 The Decent Homes Standard is defined as below: 
 

a) Any residential premises should have a safe and healthy environment for 
any potential occupier or visitor (Formally the statutory minimum standard 
for housing) 

 
 b) It is in a reasonable state of repair 
 

Dwellings which fail to meet this criterion are those where either: 
 

• One or more key building components are old and because of their 
condition need replacing or major repairs: or 

• Two or more of the other building components are old and because of 
their condition need replacing or major repair. 

 
 c) It has reasonable modern facilities and services 
 

Dwellings which fail to meet this criterion are those which lack three or more 
of the following: 

 
• A reasonably modern kitchen (less than 20 years old) 
• A kitchen with adequate space and layout 
• A reasonably modern bathroom (30 years old or less) 

Page 15



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

• An appropriately located bathroom and WC 
• Adequate insulation against external noise (where external noise is a 

problem) 
• Adequate size and layout of common areas for blocks of flats. 

 
 d) It provides a reasonable degree of thermal comfort 
 

This criterion requires dwellings to have both effective insulation and 
efficient heating. To deliver against the targets the Council needs to: 

 
• quantify the level of non decent housing both now and arising by 2010, 

in its stock; 
• develop an investment strategy to tackle this; and 
• measure progress towards its elimination. 

 
4.5 The table below identifies the key differences in levels of replacements and 

improvements to the properties over years 2 to 5 of the plan as an example: 
 
 Table 4.2 Stock Investment Requirements over Years 2 to 5 of the Plan 
 

Component: Number of 
Properties 

benefiting from 
replacements 

under 
Recommended 

Life-Cycles 
(Modern 

Standard) 

Element 
Life 

Cycle 
Years 

Number of 
Properties 

benefiting from 
replacements 

under Extended 
Life-Cycles 

(Decent Homes 
Standard) 

Element 
Life 

Cycle 
Years 

Boiler replacements 1,735 16 1,158 24 
Electric heating 166 16 100 24 
Rewiring 1,103 32 551 40 
Entrance door replacement 1,332 24 775 32 
PVCu double glazing 1,853 24 551 32 
Tiled roofing 1,349 40 639 48 
Flat roofing 168 16 47 20 
Water tank renewals 1,438 28 812 40 
Door entry systems 1,304 16 692 40 
Kitchen replacements 1,913 16 699 32 
Bathroom replacements 1,764 24 403 40 
 
5. Modelling Assumptions 
 
5.1 We have developed a model specifically for projecting forward the HRA and 

capital forecasts under HRA self-financing. 
 
5.2 The model is launched using the budgets for the 2011.12 HRA and capital 

programme and the above stock investment requirements from year 2. 
 

Page 16



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

5.3 The model then uses a series of assumptions for both core inflation and 
real inflation factors to the base costs. There are exceptions to these and 
they are covered in the following paragraphs. 

 
5.4 RPI is factored at 2.5% throughout the model, with the exception of rent 

inflation for 2012.13. The 2011 September RPI has been published at 5.6% 
and we have facilitated this in the modelling with 2.5% from year 3 onwards.  

 
5.5  Current rents are set in the model to converge by 2015.16 as described in 

paragraph 2.2 above. 
 
5.6 Income for the following non rent income budgets has been set to increase 

at RPI only; 
• Service charges 
• Garage rents 
• Other income. 

 
5.7 General Management and Special (Service) costs are modelled at RPI only. 

Any future cost increases above general inflation such as increases to 
employer pension contributions, pay awards, supplies and services cost 
pressures, would have to be met by efficiency savings. 

 
5.8 The void rate is set at 1% throughout to reflect current performance in year 

1 and the bad debt provision is estimated to increase from 0.3% to 0.5% 
over the next 3 years to protect against the impact of future housing benefit 
reforms. 

 
5.9 Right to Buy levels are estimated at an average of 7 per annum throughout 

the plan, again reflecting current levels, with corresponding adjustments to 
rental income. None of the available (un-pooled) capital receipt is forecast 
to be available to finance HRA capital expenditure. There is the potential 
that the pooling arrangement may change through proposals to change the 
Right to Buy policy. Further details will be known in national housing 
strategy due to be published in November. 

 
5.10 The stock condition survey does not provide for procurement fees and we 

are advised that these are included within the current management costs, 
but have allowed a contingency of 1% due to the increased size of the 
future investment expenditure. 

 
5.11 There are no increases above RPI for either capital and planned/revenue 

maintenance repairs and therefore any contingencies within the provisional 
costs will have to be utilised in the event of real inflation.  

 
6. HRA outputs (HRA reform, self-financing) 

 
6.1 On the 1st February, the Housing Minister confirmed that HRA reform would 

go ahead and a revised national model was issued along with proposals for 
its implementation. The position has moved further forward with a policy 

Page 17



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

document issued in July providing further details and dates on the 
transaction. 

 
6.2 The settlement transaction will be implemented on 28th March 2012. 
 
6.3 The new system is based on moving towards a ‘self financing’ HRA in 

which negative or positive subsidy is exchanged for a single one-off 
adjustment of housing debt following which rental surpluses will be retained 
locally within the Council’s HRA. 

 
6.4 The allocation of debt is the Net Present Value of a cashflow estimate of 

rents, revenue and investment costs for all authorities over 30 years, based 
on subsidy rent assumptions which achieve convergence with targets by 
2016 and subsidy allowance assumptions which include an uplift of funding. 
By linking the debt allocation to current and future subsidy assumptions, the 
government’s intention is to make the settlement ‘neutral’ in national 
expenditure terms. 

 
6.5 The headline debt settlement from CLG for Epping Forest amounts to 

£180.971m, based on uplifts of allowances of 13.41% including a new 
allowance for disabled adaptations. 

 
6.6 Using the current proposed settlement of £180.971million, the debt 

adjustment for Epping Forest would be £141.645m which is arrived at by 
offsetting the current negative HRA Capital Financing Requirement (HRA 
CFR) of £39.326million. 

 
6.7 However the proposed debt settlement is based on an estimated RPI uplift 

of 3.5% and the published index is much higher at 5.6% Epping Forest can 
expect a significant increase in its debt allocation. We estimate this to be 
£189.812million, though there is the potential for this to increase more 
through other changes to management allowances and future stock 
numbers. Therefore, as we have modelled a rent increase based on the 
5.6% factor it would be appropriate to apply an estimated debt allocation 
within the model. 

 
 The table below demonstrates the difference: 
 
 Table 6.1 – Variation to Debt Allocation re change in RPI 
 

  Current Settlement 
(Feb 11) 

Estimated Settlement 
(Nov 11) 

Debt Allocation £180.971m £189.812m 
Current HRA CFR -£39.326m -£39.326m 
Debt Adjustment £141.645m £150.486m 
Debt Cap £180.971m* £189.812m 
Borrowing Headroom £39.326m £39.326m 

 *Amended re paragraph 6.9 
 

Page 18



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

6.8 Therefore the net payment funded by the HRA required on 28th March 2012 
is estimated at £150.486million, unless the Council seeks to “over-fund” the 
HRA (see later Section on General Fund Impact). Note that all HRA 
exemplifications within this report are based on the HRA not overfunding.  
At this point we have modelled this settlement as being fully funded by 
newly arising loans. 

 
6.9 In order to protect the public finances, the government will impose a debt 

cap on local authorities, set at the debt settlement value, being an 
estimated £189.812million for Epping Forest. The government model issued 
incorrectly stated that your debt cap would be £203.774million against the 
original debt allocation of £180.971million and we expect this error in the 
calculation to be corrected in the draft determination to be issued in 
November. Given that the actual debt will commence at an estimated 
£189.812million there is therefore borrowing headroom of £39.326million 
which can be utilised to fund future capital expenditure. 

 
6.10 We have developed the model to allow debt to be repaid at the earliest 

opportunity in terms of demonstrating viability. The model ensures that the 
capital programme is fully financed, including top up from revenue 
contributions to capital from the HRA, whilst maintaining a minimum 
balance. In addition, if borrowing is required to meet needs in any year, the 
model allows for this up to the designated debt cap. Any capital shortfalls 
are carried over to the following year.  Revenue costs are based on current 
expenditure and service levels, with an allowance for inflation (RPI only).  

 
6.11 If capital expenditure can be fully financed, any remaining balances above 

the £2million minimum HRA balances are utilised for setting aside against 
the repayment of debt. This provides a debt graph that can be used to 
inform funding decisions as to the number and length of loan facilities. This 
graph is shown at chart 6.1 below. 

 
6.12 The Council is exploring the range of funding opportunities open to it to fund 

the settlement payment, but for the purposes of this initial modelling we 
have used an all-in average rate of 4.75% for calculating interest charges. It 
was recently announced that discounted rates would be available for 
funding the self-financing settlement from the Public Works Loans Board. 
Hence we have modelled a reduced rate of interest compared to previous 
iterations. 

 
6.13 The graph below demonstrates the debt taken in year one and then the 

ability to repay from surplus revenue from year 2. There is the potential 
therefore, based on the assumptions set out above and the amount of the 
settlement allocation, for the debt to be repaid by year 19. This is partly 
achieved by reducing HRA balances to £2million and utilising the balances 
of the revenue repairs account. 

 

Page 19



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 6.1 Initial Base Debt Graph - £’000s  
 

  
 
6.14 The chart below shows that the required capital expenditure can be fully 

resourced within each year. The actual cashlflows are demonstrated in 
Appendix Two of this report. 

 
 

Chart 6.2 Initial Base Capital Expenditure and Resourcing - £’000s 
 

  
6.15 As detailed in paragraph 5.10 we have included within these projections a 

small provision of expenditure for additional costs due to the large increase 
in expenditure over current levels. Further work is required to indentify the 
true allowance required, i.e. through increased staff numbers. 

 

Page 20



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart  6.3 Initial Base Forecast HRA Balances - £’000s 
 

  
6.16 The above graph shows the projected HRA balances over the next 30 

years. The balance remains at £2 million, with an allowance for inflation, for 
the 19 years whilst the HRA fund both capital works and debt repayment 
where required. Following the position of debt repayment in year 19 
balances will start to accrue to almost £306million in year 30. The cashflows 
are demonstrated in Appendix One of this report in greater detail. 

 
6.17 In summary, the initial base business plan demonstrates a viable position, 

in fully financing capital investment requirements with the ability to service 
and repay the debt funding taken on for the self-financing transaction. Once 
debt is repaid balances will begin to accrue quickly within the HRA.  

 
6.18 Whilst the plan demonstrates and is set to repay debt as early as possible, 

this may not be the best strategy. As identified balances start accruing in 
year 19 and decisions then would have to be made as how to best use 
those surplus requirements whilst plans could be made now to bring those 
benefits earlier by extending the debt repayment period. For example such 
a decision would mean that the opportunity for any new build, service 
enhancements or lower rent increases for the next 20 years could not be 
utilised.  Also, the Government has stated that it reserves the right to revisit 
councils’ debt settlements in the future. Whilst the Government has verbally 
given a commitment as to the reasons it might reopen the settlement there 
is always the risk that councils, like Epping Forest, becoming debt free on 
the HRA after 20 years, and then forecasting massive balances, could be 
asked to take on further debt in future years.  Therefore, the Council may 
wish to adopt an alternative strategy.  

  
6.19 There is therefore the capacity within the plan to finance additional 

expenditure through additional borrowing and/or extending the debt 
repayment period; an example scenario is examined in further detail in 
section 7 below. 

 

Page 21



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

7. Analysis of the capacity of the Business Plan 
 
7.1 We have modelled some further options in respect of testing the capacity of 

the business plan through the three possible options identified in the 
introduction to this report. 

 
 All three options shown below illustrate the effects of the option under 

discussion only, compared to the base plan.  Section 8 then shows the 
effects of combining these options.  

 
 Whilst there is borrowing headroom of £39.326million between actual debt 

and the debt cap we have restricted further borrowing above the initial 
borrowing for the debt settlement. In addition where there is the potential to 
repay debt in the early years the model prevents this so that no new 
borrowing is required. During this time balances will accrue within the HRA.
  

 New build 
 
7.2 There are several land sites within the HRA which offer potential for new 

build development. To enable build within the HRA the Council has three 
options: 

   
1) To fund the new build without any external support in the form of grant 

and let at existing social rent levels or; 
 
2) To fund the new build without any grant, at affordable rent levels (up to 

80% of market rent). This is the likely option if the Council is not 
successful in obtaining grant in the next Affordable Homes Programme 
(if there is one);  

 
3) To apply for grant from the Homes and Community Agency (HCA) 

where as part of the contract the new properties will be let on affordable 
rent (up to 80% of market rent). 

 
7.3 We have assumed a total build of 120 units spread over 6 years from year 3 

of the plan. Build costs of £125,000 per unit, a nominal management charge 
and future maintenance costs based on industry standards have been 
modelled.  

 
7.4 Assuming no HCA grant and the new homes being let at a social rent of 

£90 per unit the debt profile changes as follows: 
 
  

Page 22



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 7.1 Initial Debt Graph with unsupported new build social rents - £’000s 
 

  
7.5 The additional new build requires no additional borrowing and can be 

funded from existing resources without affecting planned expenditure on 
existing stock. This does extend the period of debt repayment by two years 
to year 21. Due to the lower rents and lack of grant funding, individual 
development schemes would not be self-funding (i.e. pay back for 
themselves within 30 years), and would therefore require significant subsidy 
from the HRA, hence the increase in debt repayment. 

 
7.6 The following graph shows option 2 where the new build properties are re-

let at affordable rents (equivalent to 80% of market rent) which is estimated 
at £180 per week. 

 
Chart 7.2 Initial Debt Graph with unsupported new build affordable rents - £’000s 
 

  
7.7 The graph demonstrates that, again without any additional borrowing, by 

having a higher rent level through affordable rents the new build scheme, 
whilst not paying for itself over 30 years, does not require as much subsidy 

Page 23



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

from the HRA. This is shown by repaying the debt potentially in year 20, 
one less than with social rents applied and debt can start being repaid two 
years earlier. 

  
7.8 The following chart is based on the third option above with the following 

assumptions: 
• HCA grant received, based on 20% of build costs 
• Affordable rent of £180 per week on new build properties 

 
Chart 7.3 Initial Debt Graph with supported new build- £’000s 

 

  
7.9 This approach again requires no additional borrowing and whilst the 

scheme will pay for itself over the 30 years due to drawing on the resources 
of the HRA that could have been repaying debt thus reducing interest 
charges the HRA does provisionally take an additional year to repay debt 
than without any new build. 

 
Additional Stock, Service or Environmental Improvements 

 
7.10 We have modelled additional expenditure of £2million per annum 

throughout the plan from year 2 for improvements and service 
enhancements, which can either be for capital or revenue expenditure. 
These could include, for example, a Solar PV Installation Programme to 
take advantage of the Feed-in-Tariff and/or the installation of mains-wired 
smoke detectors in all Council properties (both of which we understand the 
Council is currently considering) and/or improved landscaping schemes on 
Council estates. 

 

Page 24



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 7.4 Initial Debt Graph with additional expenditure of £2m- £’000s 
 

  
7.11 The additional expenditure of £2million per annum (equivalent to 6.3% of 

the total current year’s revenue and capital expenditure), results in an 
increase to potential debt repayment to year 24 in comparison to the base 
plan.  

 
7.12 If additional expenditure of £3million per annum was incurred (equivalent to 

9.5% of the total current years revenue and capital expenditure), debt 
repayment would be potentially extended to year 27. However in some 
years some £2.6million of the additional expenditure may need to be re-
profiled so that its does not affect existing stock investment.  

 
Reduction in Rent Increases 

 
7.13 The proposed debt settlement assumes that formula rents will increase by 

inflation (RPI) plus 0.5% and that current rents will converge with formula 
rents by April 2015. Therefore as RPI is 5.6%, and we have estimated the 
debt settlement accordingly, Epping Forest will have actual average rent 
increases of 8.0% in April 2012 and then around 4.8% for the following 3 
years to convergence, based on an RPI of 2.5%. This is demonstrated in 
the graph below. 

 

Page 25



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 7.5 Future Projected Rent Increases in Line with Rent Restructuring  
 

  
7.14 We have considered 3 alternatives as to reducing rent levels and increases; 
 

1) To increase rents by 4% in April and catch up the shortfall over 5 years 
(converging by April 2017) or 

2) To increase rents by 4% and a 3% increase to the formula rent with 
convergence in April 2015 or 

3) To increase formula rents by RPI only (without the additional 0.5% factor 
from April 2012) still converging by April 2015 

 
Chart 7.6 Initial Debt Graph with 4% Increases with Catch-Up over 5 Yrs - £’000s 
 

    
7.15 If rent increases of 4% were applied in April the following 5 years rent 

increases would average at 4.85%, based on an RPI of 2.5%, in order to 
catch up and converge with formula rent in April 2017. Following this course 
would extend debt repayment by one year. In addition we forecast that the 
HRA would lose revenue in this period of £5.1million and pay an additional 
£0.9million in interest. 

 

Page 26



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

Chart 7.7 Initial Debt Graph with 4% Increases with 3% Formula Increase - £’000s 
 

  
7.16 If this scenario was applied the average rent in April 2012 would be £84.49 

against a 3% inflated formula rent of £89.79, instead of £92.49 with the full 
6.1% increase. This would extend debt repayment to year 22. The following 
year’s increases would average 5.0%, based on 2.5% RPI up to April 2015. 
We estimate that over a ten year period this would result in a loss of 
£10.8million in revenue and £2.9million in additional interest. 

 
Chart 7.8 Initial Debt Graph with no 0.5% addition to RPI - £’000s 
 

  
7.17 If rent increases are 0.5% per annum less than expected within the debt 

settlement calculation and rent restructuring guidance, the plan does 
remain viable, compared to the base plan position, though potential debt 
repayment is extended to year 22. We would estimate that in a ten-year 
period £9.7million in revenue would be lost in addition to extra interest 
charges of £1.7million. 

 

Page 27



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

7.18 A combination of 1) and 3) would result in debt repayment being extended 
to year 23 when compared to the basic plan and when 2) and 3) applied 
year 25. 

 
7.19 Reducing future revenue and rental streams is not advisable when moving 

to a self-financing business plan in which there is a considerable amount of 
unsubsidised debt. There is however the potential scope in future for rents 
to be increased to the levels assumed within the debt settlement should the 
plan require additional revenue. Reducing rent increases would prevent 
additional investment or service improvements to the existing stock. 

 
8. Mixed analysis of business plan capacity 
 
8.1 The table below details the impact to the business plan when a mixture of 

the above options is applied by analysing the extension to the period of 
potential debt repayment and the additional borrowing required.  

 
8.2 Again we have assumed no additional borrowing and therefore not utilising 

any of the borrowing headroom. In addition we have modelled no slippage 
of capital works to existing properties and therefore this prevents many of 
the options to be combined. For example applying a lower rent increase 
and extending convergence results in the ability to fund service 
improvement and new build with delaying capital works to existing 
properties. 

 
 Table 8.1 Mix of Options to Test the Capacity of the Business Plan 
 

New 
Build 

Service 
Enhancements 

From Year 2 
Add. Service 

Enhancements 
From Year 10 

Rent 
Reduction 

Potential 
Debt 

Repaid 
Base - - - Yr 19 
With grant £1.4m  p.a. £3.9m  p.a. - Yr 30 
With grant £0.5m  p.a. £4.75m  p.a. 1) 4% Inc Yr 29 
With grant £0.5m  p.a. £4.0m  p.a. 2) 4%/3% Inc Yr 30 
With grant £0.9m  p.a. £1.75m  p.a. 3) No 0.5% Inc Yr 30 
With grant £0.25m  p.a. £2.5m  p.a. Comb 1) & 3) Yr 30 
With grant £0 £1.75m  p.a. Comb 2) & 3) Yr 30 
W/o grant – Social R £0.8m  p.a. £3.85m  p.a. - Yr 30 
W/o grant – Social R £0.1m  p.a. £4.75m  p.a. 1) 4% Inc Yr 30 
W/o grant – Social R £0 £3.5m  p.a. 2) 4%/3% Inc Yr 29 
W/o grant – Social R £0.15m  p.a. £2.0m  p.a. 3) No 0.5% Inc Yr 30 
W/o grant – Social R £0 £1.8m  p.a. Comb 1) & 3) Yr 30 
W/o grant – Social R £0 £1.2m  p.a. Comb 2) & 3) Yr 30 
W/o grant – Afford R £1.0m  p.a. £4.3m  p.a. - Yr 30 
W/o grant – Afford R £0.3m  p.a. £4.9m  p.a. 1) 4% Inc Yr 29 
W/o grant – Afford R £0.1m  p.a. £4.2m  p.a. 2) 4%/3% Inc Yr 29 
W/o grant – Afford R £0.45m  p.a. £2.3m  p.a. 3) No 0.5% Inc Yr 30 
W/o grant – Afford R £0 £2.6m  p.a. Comb 1) & 3) Yr 30 
W/o grant – Afford R  £0 £1.6m  p.a. Comb 2) & 3) Yr 30 

Page 28



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

 
8.3 The table presents a position where debt repayment is extended to and 

near as possible to 30 years. To enable this we have had to model 
additional service expenditure from year 10, generally when the plan can 
support it following the completion of the new build programme. For 
example, in year 10 of the plan, using the first scenario the plan has a total 
of £4.75million of additional expenditure for service improvement, with 
inflation applied within the model. 

 
8.4 As we have demonstrated, the capacity of the plan with no additional 

borrowing the Council is not utilising its headroom of £39.3million. The table 
below demonstrates using just a couple of scenarios from above what could 
be delivered earlier in the plan by allowing some additional borrowing. 

 
Table 8.2 Mix of Options to Test the Capacity of the Business Plan With Borrowing 
 
New 
Build 

Service 
Enhancements 

From Year 2 
Additional 
Borrowing 

Over  £150.5m 
Potential 

Debt Repaid 
Additional 

Expenditure 
Provided 

W/o grant – Afford R £4.0m  p.a. £33.5m Yr 30 £4.0m 
W/o grant – Social R £3.5m  p.a. £30.8m Yr 30 £4.0m 
With grant £4.2m  p.a. £30.4m Yr 30 £4.0m 

 
8.5 Whilst the overall additional expenditure, at today’s prices, only amounts to 

£4million in each scenario, the Council and tenants benefit from the extra 
resources being spent earlier. There is no negative effect on the potential 
repayment term even though additional borrowing is required.  

 
8.6 We have undertaking some further modelling on the following assumptions 

of: 
• Modern Investment Standard 
• New build at affordable rent with support 
• With rents converging to formula rent but as described below: 

 
Table 8.3 Effects of Discounted Rent Increases 
 
April 2012 
Rent Increase 

Rent 
Increases 

To 
Convergence 
Above RPI 

Service 
Enhance-
ments 
From  
Year 2 

Plus 
Service 
Enhance-
ments 

From Yr 10 

Additional 
Borrowing 

Over 
£150.5m 

Potential 
Debt 
Repaid 

5% - Converge April 2015 2.70%  £1.0m £4.5m - Yr 30 
6% - Converge April 2015 2.68% £1.1m £4.6m - Yr 30 
7% - Converge April 2015 2.61% £1.2m £4.6m - Yr 30 
5% - Converge April 2015 2.70% £4.1m - £33.0m Yr 30 
6% - Converge April 2015 2.68% £4.2m - £32.9m Yr 30 
7% - Converge April 2015 2.61% £4.2m - £31.3m Yr 30 
5% - Converge April 2017 2.16% £0.8m £4.8m - Yr 30 
6% - Converge April 2017 1.96% £0.9m £4.7m - Yr 30 
7% - Converge April 2017 1.76% £1.0m £4.7m - Yr 30 
5% - Converge April 2017 2.16% £4.0m - £33.5m Yr 30 
6% - Converge April 2017 1.96% £4.1m - £33.9m Yr 30 
7% - Converge April 2017 1.76% £4.1m - £32.6m Yr 30 

Page 29



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

 
9. Potential issues for the base plan 
 
9.1 Whilst the base plan shows a comfortably viable position with capacity to 

consider alternative options we have identified the following potential 
factors that could affect the future viability. 

 
Debt Settlement  

 
9.2 The original consultation for self-financing published by the previous 

Government in March 2010, identified a potential debt settlement figure but 
took into account the Subsidy Capital Financing Requirement  (the notional 
assessment of the Council’s HRA debt position) if this were negative, whilst 
this has been ignored in the new current Government’s proposals. If this 
were reinstated as part of the final debt settlement then the estimated HRA 
debt take on of £150.486million could be increased to £166.492million. The 
graph below shows that the potential debt repayment could extend to year 
21. 

 
Chart 9.1 Initial Debt Graph with negative subsidy CFR adjustment- £’000s 
 

  
 

General Fund impact 
 
9.3 Epping Forest’s current financing position could present a problem to the 

General Fund with the introduction of self-financing as the debt means the 
Council loses its debt free status. 

 
9.4 Whilst this has no impact on the HRA, it was originally proposed by the 

Government that the General Fund would have to make a Minimum 
Revenue Provision (MRP) of 4% of its CFR balance. However this issue 
has been resolved now through the most recent publications from CLG and 
CIPFA with councils in Epping Forest’s position receiving an exemption 
from this requirement.  

 

Page 30



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

9.5  Another issue for the General Fund is that it currently internally borrows 
from the HRA, thus benefiting from a reduced interest charge. With the 
HRA moving into a position of debt, the General Fund will be required to 
finance its own CFR of £38.5million. 

 
9.6 The Council’s treasury advisors, Arlingclose, have assessed this position 

and have identified that the Council can offset the General Fund CFR using 
existing balances and reserves under new guidance from CIPFA by 
separating the debt into dedicated pools.   

 
9.7 A potential option if the General Fund is unable to fully fund its CFR from 

reserves and balances following self-financing could be that the HRA 
continues to internally fund the General Fund at the expense of the HRA. 

 
9.8 An argument could be made that the General Fund should not be adversely 

affected by the introduction of self financing and whilst the HRA is 
technically worse-off from an increased interest charge an argument could 
also be made that the non-adjustment to the debt settlement detailed in 9.2 
offsets most of the effect of this.  

 
9.9 Further investigation is required to see if this course of action is possible but 

we have demonstrated that the HRA has capacity within the business plan 
for increased expenditure. It is difficult to fully quantify the effect on the HRA 
without advice from the Council’s treasury advisers. 

 
10. Summary 
 
10.1 The projections contained in this report demonstrate that the HRA self 

financing business plan is viable under a range of circumstances. 
 
10.2 However the projections are on the basis of an indicative debt settlement 

that will change. In addition, the interest rates and basis of funding the 
transaction are also very much subject to change. The treasury strategy is 
still to be laid out as is the budget for next financial year. 

 
10.3 The potential for over-funding the HRA does require further investigation 

and if this route is required, it must take priority over any other additional 
spend commitments. 

 
10.4 The new build calculations are based on assumed levels and will be subject 

to refinement if the Council works up plans for actual schemes in detail. 
 
10.5 The model has assumed no real growth on management or maintenance 

costs (other than through the stock investment discussed) - efficiency 
savings would be required to offset any unpredicted growth. 

 

Page 31



 
ConsultCIH Ltd      www.consultcih.co.uk  
4 Riley Court,      EMail headoffice@consultcih.co.uk 
Millburn Hill Road,      Telephone 024 7647 2720 
Coventry, CV4 7HP       Registered in England and Wales: 01754648 

11. Issues for Consideration for the Council 
 
11.1 As we have previously stated this is very much an options report for the 

HRA Financial Plan and we would suggest the following be considered 
before the plan is developed further: 

 
• Consider/confirm that expenditure on stock investment should be increased 

to a proper maintenance standard, instead of the current minimum Decent 
Homes Standard 

 
• The associated additional staffing requirement to deliver an increased 

maintenance programme  
 
• Whether the Council wants to consider provision within the Financial Plan 

for new build, improvements/service enhancements and/or lower rent 
increase and, if so, how much for each option 

 
• If provision is made for improvements/service enhancements, separate 

consideration at a later date on the options available 
 

• If lower rent reductions are proposed, consideration of whether these 
should commence from April 2012, since the Council will shortly be 
preparing its 2012/13 HRA Budget 

 
• Consider if the option of overfunding, if required, for the HRA to assist the 

General Fund should be explored and, if so, the explorative approach to be 
taken  

 
 
 
Simon Smith 
 
 
October 2011 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT PROJECTIONS
Epping Forest District Council

Year 2011.12 2012.13 2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18 2018.19 2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30
£'000 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
INCOME:
Rental Income 27,789 29,979 31,340 32,752 34,272 35,261 36,280 37,327 38,405 39,514 40,655 41,828 43,036 44,278 45,557 46,872 48,225 49,617 51,049
Void Losses -286 -300 -313 -327 -342 -352 -362 -373 -384 -395 -406 -418 -430 -442 -455 -468 -482 -496 -510
Service Charges 1,715 1,758 1,802 1,847 1,893 1,940 1,989 2,039 2,090 2,142 2,195 2,250 2,306 2,364 2,423 2,484 2,546 2,610 2,675
Non-Dwelling Income 930 953 977 1,002 1,027 1,052 1,079 1,105 1,133 1,161 1,190 1,220 1,251 1,282 1,314 1,347 1,381 1,415 1,450
Grants & Other Income 335 343 352 361 370 379 388 398 408 418 429 440 451 462 473 485 497 510 522
Total Income 30,483 32,734 34,158 35,634 37,219 38,281 39,373 40,497 41,652 42,841 44,063 45,321 46,614 47,944 49,312 50,719 52,167 53,655 55,186
EXPENDITURE:
General Management -3,973 -4,072 -4,174 -4,278 -4,385 -4,495 -4,607 -4,723 -4,841 -4,962 -5,086 -5,213 -5,343 -5,477 -5,614 -5,754 -5,898 -6,045 -6,197
Special Management -3,676 -3,768 -3,862 -3,959 -4,058 -4,159 -4,263 -4,370 -4,479 -4,591 -4,706 -4,823 -4,944 -5,067 -5,194 -5,324 -5,457 -5,593 -5,733
Other Management -11,706 -404 -414 -424 -435 -446 -457 -468 -480 -492 -504 -517 -530 -543 -557 -571 -585 -600 -615
Rent Rebates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bad Debt Provision -83 -90 -157 -164 -171 -176 -181 -186 -192 -197 -203 -209 -215 -221 -228 -234 -241 -248 -255
Responsive & Cyclical Repairs -5,200 -2,080 -5,928 -6,076 -6,228 -6,383 -6,543 -6,707 -6,874 -7,046 -7,222 -7,403 -7,588 -7,778 -7,972 -8,171 -8,376 -8,585 -8,800
Total Revenue Expenditure -24,638 -10,414 -14,534 -14,901 -15,277 -15,659 -16,052 -16,454 -16,866 -17,288 -17,721 -18,165 -18,620 -19,086 -19,564 -20,054 -20,556 -21,071 -21,599
Interest Paid 700 -6,865 -6,568 -6,531 -6,453 -6,346 -6,188 -5,999 -5,809 -5,558 -5,292 -4,997 -4,562 -4,013 -3,438 -2,802 -2,022 -1,211 -417
Finance Administration -47 -103 -105 -108 -110 -113 -116 -119 -122 -125 -128 -131 -134 -138 -141 -145 -148 -152 -156
Interest Received 172 139 58 59 59 59 59 59 59 59 59 60 61 63 65 66 68 70 76
Depreciation -4,949 -6,983 -7,139 -7,298 -7,473 -8,016 -8,207 -8,403 -8,604 -8,809 -9,020 -9,235 -9,455 -9,681 -9,912 -10,149 -10,391 -10,639 -10,893
Net Operating Income 1,721 8,509 5,869 6,855 7,965 8,206 8,870 9,581 10,311 11,120 11,961 12,852 13,904 15,088 16,321 17,636 19,117 20,652 22,197
APPROPRIATIONS:
FRS 17 /Other HRA Reserve Adj -130 -132 -134 -136 -138 -141 -143 -145 -147 -150 -152 -155 -158 -160 -163 -166 -169 -172 -175
Debt Reduction 0 -11,915 -575 -983 -2,332 -2,160 -4,508 -3,416 -4,592 -5,992 -5,184 -7,251 -11,077 -12,013 -12,204 -14,584 -18,277 -15,877 -17,546
Revenue Contribution to Capital -2,050 0 -5,124 -5,736 -5,494 -5,905 -4,218 -6,020 -5,570 -4,977 -6,625 -5,395 -2,616 -2,863 -3,899 -2,829 -612 -4,546 -4,107
Total Appropriations -2,180 -12,047 -5,833 -6,856 -7,964 -8,206 -8,869 -9,581 -10,310 -11,119 -11,962 -12,800 -13,850 -15,035 -16,267 -17,579 -19,058 -20,595 -21,827

ANNUAL CASHFLOW -459 -3,539 36 0 1 0 1 -1 1 1 0 52 53 53 54 57 59 57 370

Opening Balance 5,962 5,503 1,964 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,002 2,001 2,002 2,002 2,002 2,054 2,107 2,160 2,214 2,271 2,329 2,386

Closing Balance 5,503 1,964 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,002 2,001 2,002 2,002 2,002 2,054 2,107 2,160 2,214 2,271 2,329 2,386 2,756

Other HRA Reserve Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
p
p
e
n
d
i
x
2

P
age 33



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT PROJECTIONS
Epping Forest District Council

Year
£'000
INCOME:
Rental Income
Void Losses
Service Charges
Non-Dwelling Income
Grants & Other Income
Total Income
EXPENDITURE:
General Management
Special Management
Other Management
Rent Rebates
Bad Debt Provision
Responsive & Cyclical Repairs
Total Revenue Expenditure
Interest Paid
Finance Administration
Interest Received
Depreciation
Net Operating Income
APPROPRIATIONS:
FRS 17 /Other HRA Reserve Adj
Debt Reduction
Revenue Contribution to Capital
Total Appropriations

ANNUAL CASHFLOW

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

Other HRA Reserve Balance

2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35 2035.36 2036.37 2037.38 2038.39 2039.40 2040.41 2041.42 2042.43 2043.44 2044.45 2045.46
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35

52,522 54,038 55,597 57,202 58,852 60,550 62,298 64,095 65,944 67,847 69,804 71,818 73,889 76,021 78,213 80,469
-525 -540 -556 -572 -588 -605 -622 -640 -659 -678 -697 -718 -738 -760 -782 -804
2,742 2,810 2,880 2,952 3,026 3,102 3,180 3,259 3,340 3,424 3,510 3,597 3,687 3,779 3,874 3,971
1,487 1,524 1,562 1,601 1,641 1,682 1,724 1,767 1,811 1,857 1,903 1,951 2,000 2,049 2,101 2,153
536 549 563 577 591 606 621 637 653 669 686 703 720 738 757 776

56,761 58,381 60,047 61,760 63,523 65,335 67,200 69,117 71,090 73,118 75,205 77,351 79,558 81,828 84,163 86,565

-6,351 -6,510 -6,673 -6,840 -7,011 -7,186 -7,366 -7,550 -7,739 -7,932 -8,130 -8,334 -8,542 -8,756 -8,974 -9,199
-5,877 -6,024 -6,174 -6,328 -6,487 -6,649 -6,815 -6,985 -7,160 -7,339 -7,523 -7,711 -7,903 -8,101 -8,304 -8,511
-630 -646 -662 -678 -695 -713 -730 -749 -767 -787 -806 -826 -847 -868 -890 -912

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
-262 -270 -278 -286 -294 -303 -311 -320 -329 -339 -349 -359 -369 -380 -391 -402

-9,020 -9,245 -9,476 -9,713 -9,956 -10,205 -10,460 -10,721 -10,989 -11,264 -11,546 -11,834 -12,130 -12,434 -12,744 -13,063
-22,140 -22,694 -23,263 -23,845 -24,443 -25,055 -25,682 -26,326 -26,985 -27,661 -28,354 -29,064 -29,792 -30,538 -31,303 -32,087

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
-160 -164 -168 -172 -176 -181 -185 -190 -195 -200 -205 -210 -215 -220 -226 -232
371 986 1,680 2,440 3,240 4,087 4,940 5,743 6,564 7,502 8,524 9,634 10,862 12,170 13,564 15,048

-11,153 -11,420 -11,692 -11,971 -12,257 -12,549 -12,849 -13,155 -13,469 -13,791 -14,120 -14,457 -14,801 -15,154 -15,516 -15,886
23,679 25,089 26,604 28,212 29,886 31,637 33,423 35,189 37,005 38,969 41,051 43,255 45,611 48,086 50,683 53,408

-178 -181 -184 -188 -191 -195 -198 -202 -206 -210 -214 -218 -222 -226 -231 -235
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

-3,902 -2,905 -1,465 -1,529 -2,099 -1,704 -5,223 -8,653 -7,566 -4,561 -5,868 -2,862 -2,520 -2,170 -1,811 -1,444
-4,080 -3,086 -1,649 -1,717 -2,291 -1,899 -5,421 -8,855 -7,772 -4,771 -6,081 -3,080 -2,742 -2,396 -2,042 -1,679

19,599 22,003 24,954 26,495 27,596 29,738 28,002 26,334 29,233 34,198 34,969 40,175 42,869 45,690 48,641 51,729

2,756 22,355 44,357 69,312 95,807 123,402 153,141 181,143 207,477 236,710 270,908 305,877 346,052 388,921 434,611 483,252

22,355 44,357 69,312 95,807 123,402 153,141 181,143 207,477 236,710 270,908 305,877 346,052 388,921 434,611 483,252 534,981

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
ppendix 2

P
age 34


	Agenda
	5 Terms of Reference
	6 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Financial Plan - Consultation on the Report of the Housing Portfolio Holder to the Cabinet on 5 December 2011
	Report to Cabinet - Financial Plan
	Business Plan Note v 5
	True - Appendix 2


